“‘ TOWN OF
<@ WELLINGTON

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
March 11, 2025
6:30 PM

Leeper Center, 3800 Wilson Avenue, Wellington, CO
Regular Meeting Agenda

Individuals wishing to make public comments must attend the meeting in person or may submit comments by
sending an email to hillha@wellingtoncolorado.gov. The email must be received by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the
meeting. The comments will be provided to the Trustees and added as an addendum to the packet. Emailed
comments will not be read during the meeting.

The Zoom information below is for online viewing and listening only.

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84871162393?pwd=UkVaaDE4RmhJaERnallEK 1ThvNHJI5Zz09
Passcode: 726078
Or One tap mobile :

US: +17207072699,,84871162393# or +17193594580,,84871162393#
Or Telephone:
Dial US: +1 720 707 2699 or +1 719 359 4580 or +1 669 444 9171 or +1 253 205 0468
Webinar ID: 848 7116 2393

A. CALL TO ORDER
1.  Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call
3. Amendments to Agenda
4.  Conflict of Interest
B. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION
1.  Public Comment
C. PRESENTATION

1. 2022 Town of Wellington, Colorado Financial Statements with Independent Auditor's Report

e Presentation: Nic Redavid, Finance Director/Treasurer

2. 2024 Annual Report
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e Presentation: Patti Garcia, Town Administrator

D. LIQUOR LICENSE AUTHORITY BOARD
1. Green Events Inc. Spring Equinox Special Event Permit
E. CONSENT AGENDA
1.  February 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes
F.  REPORTS
1.  Town Attorney
2. Town Administrator
3. Staff Communications
4. Board Reports
G. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations,
developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(e),
C.R.S., and for the purpose of receiving legal advice pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S., —
regarding matters with the North Poudre Irrigation Company. As required by C.R.S. §24-6-
402(2)(d.5)(IT)(A) and (IT) (E) the Executive Session proceedings will be electronically recorded
and the record will be preserved for 90 days through June 9, 2025.

H. ADJOURN

The Town of Wellington will make reasonable accommodations for access to Town services, programs, and activities and special communication arrangements
Individuals needing special accommodation may request assistance by contacting at Town Hall or at 970-568-3380 ext. 110 at least 24 hours in advance.
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Board of Trustees Meeting

Date:  March 11, 2025
Subject: 2022 Town of Wellington, Colorado Financial Statements with Independent Auditor's Report

e Presentation: Nic Redavid, Finance Director/Treasurer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Town of Wellington, Colorado Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2022, has been completed as of January 31, 2025, and submitted to the Office of the State
Auditor for Colorado. The report has been included in this packet and is available on the Finance Department
page of the Town’s website.

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

Typically, the audit of the 2022 financial statements would have been completed and submitted to the Office of
the State Auditor by July 31, 2023. Given significant turnover in the Town’s finance department over the past
several years, audits of the financial statements for the 2021, 2022, and 2023 fiscal years were delayed. The
audit for 2021 was initially submitted February 27, 2024, and subsequently revised June 7, 2024, by Mayberry
& Company, LLC.

The Board contracted with Hinkle & Company PC for completion of the financial statement audits for 2022,
2023, and 2024. The internal turnover, prior year audit submission and revisions, and change in firms have
played a significant role in only now completing and submitting the 2022 audit of financial statements.

James (Jim) D. Hinkle, CPA/ABV, CVA, CFF, MAFF, CM&AA, has been reviewing internal controls,
transactions, and account balances for the past several months in the preparation of the independent auditor’s
report of the 2022 financial statements. This review included an on-site visit on December 17, 2024. An update
from Mr. Hinkle was given to the Board at the December 17, 2024, work session, providing background on the
process, timeline, and future expectations.

The most important takeaway from the independent auditor’s report of the 2022 financial statements is that the
Town of Wellington received a “clean opinion”, which is the highest praise an auditor can give. Financial
statements were presented fairly for the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund. Additionally, the respective changes in financial positions and
cash flows for the year were represented fairly in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Highlights from the 2022 financial statements:

e The total net position of the Town for all funds on December 31, 2022, was $107.5 million. Assets
exceeded liabilities by $3.8 million more than the previous year.

e Net investment in capital assets (all fixed assets less accumulated depreciation and related debt) was
$67.1 million, nearly 62% of the total net position. Funds restricted for emergencies, streets, and open
space and parks are an additional 7% of the total net position, for a total of $7.6 million.

e Over $32.8 million, 30.5% of the total net position on December 31, 2022, are unrestricted funds that
may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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e The fund balance for the General Fund grew by $1.7 million to $9.1 million, and all governmental funds
grew by $2.2 million to a total fund balance of $16.5 million.

e While the sewer fund experienced a negative change in net position of $494,688, the net position (fund
balance) ended at $23.2 million. Combined, the enterprise funds’ net position at year-end was $73.6
million, with a positive change in net position of $1.9 million.

¢ QOutstanding debt at year-end in governmental funds decreased by $246,599 and increased by $41.9
million in enterprise funds. The increase was largely due to the loan for the construction of the
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Additional notes:

¢ Auditors present opinions on the Basic Financial Statements, which are: Statement of Net Position;
Statement of Activities; Balance Sheet; Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances/Net Position; Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to Financial Statements. Required
Supplementary Information utilizes the same audited numbers as the Basic Financial Statements, but no
additional opinion is presented on those statements specifically.

CONNECTION WITH ADOPTED MASTER PLANS
Ensure Strong Town Operations: Cultivate effective staff & trustee interactions

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

Estimated beginning fund balances for the 2025 budget were developed using the ending fund balances from
the 2022 and 2023 financial statements that had not yet been audited, and the estimated ending fund balances
for 2024. Given the clean opinion of the financial statements for 2022, including the opinion that the financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund were presented fairly,
no adjustments to the Town's current budgeted programs or projects are necessary at this time.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Review and retain report.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2022 Town of Wellington, Colorado Financial Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board of Trustees
Town of Wellington, Colorado
Wellington, Colorado

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities and each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Wellington, Colorado (the Town) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Town,
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities and each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town as of December 31, 2022, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Town’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information and
the local highway finance report listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

\X g b Comgane

Englewood, Colorado
January 31, 2025
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

The management team of the Town of Wellington (the Town) is pleased to present this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial position and activities of the Town for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. Readers are encouraged to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the information furnished in the Basic Financial
Statements, Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, and Supplementary Information.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide

e The assets of the Town of Wellington exceeded its liabilities (also referred to in these
financial statements as the Town’s Net Position) at the close of 2022 by $108 million,
an increase of $3.8 million from the year before.

o Currentassetsinclude $42.6 million in pooled cash, $21.6 million in cash with
fiscal agent in the Water Fund received from a state loan for the construction
of a new Water Treatment Plant, and $41.6 million in cash with fiscal agent in
the Water Fund received from a state loan for the construction of a new
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

o Noncurrentassetsinclude $81.9 million in net fixed assets, such as buildings,
equipment, and road, storm, water, and sewer infrastructure.

o Of the $107.5 million total net position, $67.1 million consists of net
investment in capital assets (all fixed assets less accumulated depreciation
and related debt) so it is not in a form that is available and spendable to the
Town. Another $32.8 million is classified as “unrestricted”, consisting of cash
and other current assets, less current liabilities and may be used to meet the
Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The Town retired $3.9 million of its long-term debt (excluding compensated
absences) during the fiscal year due to semi-annual and annual principal payments

made on the Town’s outstanding obligations (see Note 4).

Governmental Funds

e At the end of the calendar year 2022, fund balance in the General Fund was $9.1
million and revenues exceeded expenditures by $1.7 million during the year.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

e Street Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $746,884 in 2022, increasing fund
balance to $4.4 million.

¢ In the Park Fund, capital outlay and debt service expenditures in 2022 decreased
fund balance by $288,423 to $2.0 million.

e The Conservation Trust Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $49,455 in 2022
and no expenditure, bringing ending fund balance to $959,195.

Proprietary Funds

e The Water Fund operating expenses exceeded operating revenue by $968,859 in
2022. Nonoperating revenues such as impact fees, investment income, and
intergovernmental revenue added $1.3 million, generating a net income before
capital contributions and transfers of $369,386. With capital contributions and
transfers, including a $653,000 transfer from the General Fund, the change in net
position for 2022 was $2.2 million. At the end of year, the net position of the Water
Fund was $46.5 million.

e The Sewer Fund had an operating loss of $668,025, and a net expense before capital
contributions and transfers of $1.7 million, after $662,702 in depreciation and $1.1
million in interest expense. After plant investment fees and a $390,000 transfer from
the General Fund are factored in, the Sewer Fund’s net position decreased by
$494,668 to $23.2 million.

e The Drainage Fund net operating oncome in 2022 was $104,459. Including
nonoperating revenues, the fund’s net position increased $225,497 to $4.0 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serve as an introduction to the Town of Wellington’s basic
financial statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information that supports the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Wellington’s finances.
These statements are prepared in a manner similar to a private-sector business using the
accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the
Town of Wellington’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources with the difference between the categories reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Town of Wellington is improving or deteriorating.

Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the
Town of Wellington’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish the functions of the Town of
Wellington that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business type activities). The
governmental activities of the Town of Wellington include general government, public
safety, public works, planning, library, parks, and recreation. The business-type activities of
the Town of Wellington include water, sewer, and storm drainage operations.

The government-wide financial statements include only the Town of Wellington itself (known
as the primary government) and can be found on page 4 of this report.

Fund financial statements. Afundis a grouping of related accounts thatis used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Town of Wellington, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All funds of the Town
of Wellington can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-
end available for spending. The funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view to cash, the governmental fund operations, and the basic services it provides.
These statements help one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town’s programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are described in reconciliations on
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

pages 7 and 9. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 6
to 9 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The Town of Wellington currently maintains one type of proprietary fund,
called enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented
as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town of
Wellington uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer, water, and storm drainage
operations.

Business-type activities are reported providing the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The business-type financial
statements provide separate information for sewer, water and storm drainage operations,
which are major enterprise funds of the Town of Wellington. The basic proprietary fund
financial statements detailing the business-type activities can be found on pages 10 to 12
of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the Town. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town of
Wellington’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used
for proprietary funds. Additional information on the Town’s Fiduciary Fund (Library Trust
Fund) can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide significant additional information
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 15
to 28 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents required and certain other supplementary information concerning
the Town of Wellington’s budget comparison statements for the General Fund, non-major
Conservation Trust Fund and the Town’s three major enterprise funds Water, Sewer and
Storm Drainage. The other supplementary information can be found on pages 29 to 42 of
this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
A significant portion of the Town’s net position (61.7%) reflects its investment in capital

assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt
used to acquire those assets, and accumulated depreciation. The Town uses these capital
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. Below and on the following pages is condensed financial information
for fiscal year 2022 compared with 2021 totals.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

2022
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals 2021 Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets $20,117,796 $89,486,393 $109,604,189 $73,014,143
Capital Assets 18,249,464 63,617,013 81,866,477 64,593,499
Total Assets 38,367,260 153,103,406 191,470,666 137,607,642
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF FINANCIAL
RESOURCES - 838 838 838
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 1,901,203 12,558,363 14,459,566 6,054,714
Noncurrent Liabilities 893,853 66,883,422 67,777,275 25,507,648
Total Liabilities 2,795,056 79,441,785 82,236,841 31,562,362
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF FINANCIAL
RESOURCES 1,681,506 88,830 1,770,336 2,381,469
NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital
Assets 17,468,143 49,616,182 67,084,325 39,277,700
Restricted for:

Emergencies 125,000 - 125,000 -

Other Purposes 7,435,329 - 7,435,329 27,223,010
Unrestricted 8,862,226 23,957,447 32,819,673 37,163,939
Total Net Position $33,890,698 $73,573,629 $107,464,327 $103,664,649
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

The restricted portion of net position (7.0%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used, such as street paving, maintenance, and
open space and parks. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position of $32.8 million
may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Vi
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

The table and discussion continued below and on the next page focuses on changes in net
position of the Town’s governmental and business-type activities.

Condensed Statement of Activities

2022
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals 2021 Totals
REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $800,583 $7,685,300 $8,485,883 $7,409,935
Operating Grants and
Contributions 1,195,025 1,325,760 2,520,785 578,514
Capital Grants and
Contributions - 1,962,992 1,962,992 5,307,791
General Revenues
Property Taxes 1,648,885 175,721 1,824,606 1,751,816
Sales and Use Taxes 6,101,904 - 6,101,904 5,377,606
Franchise Taxes 234,962 - 2234,962 218,903
Investment Income 211,907 406,365 618,272 20,719
Other 368,876 2,444 371,320 567,029
Transfers (1,043,000) 1,043,000 -
Total Revenues and
Transfers 9,519,142 12,601,582 22,120,724 21,232,313
EXPENSES
General Government 2,285,434 - 2,285,434 1,876,096
Public Safety 1,655,435 - 1,655,435 1,492,267
Public Works 3,022,364 - 3,022,364 1,878,036
Parks and Recreation 680,113 - 680,113 1,856,854
Water Utility - 6,254,116 6,254,116 5,009,111
Wastewater Utility - 3,849,281 3,849,281 2,277,166
Stormwater Utility - 574,303 574,303 762,413
Total Expenses 7,643,346 10,677,700 18,321,046 15,152,024
| Change in Net Position 1,875,796 | 1,923,882 | 3,799,678 | 6,080,289
Net Position, Beginning
of Year 32,014,902 71,649,747 103,664,649 102,198,027
Prior Period
Restatement - - - (4,613,667)
Net Position, Beginning
(as restated) 32,014,902 71,649,747 103,664,649 97,584,360
Net Position, End of Year $33,890,698 $73,573,629 $107,464,327 $103,664,649
Vi
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
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December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of Wellington’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the Town of Wellington’s financing requirements.
Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of 2022, the Town of Wellington’s governmental funds (General, Streets, Parks,
and Conservation Trust Funds) reported combined ending fund balances of $16.5 million,
an increase of $2.2 million over the combined governmental fund balances of the previous
year. Approximately half of this combined fund balance constitutes unassigned fund
balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of
fund balance is otherwise classified to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because the assetitselfisin a non-spendable form (e.g., prepaid expenses) or that portions
of fund balance have been restricted or committed to specific purposes (e.g. streets and
parks) as follows:

Non-spendable $61,493
Restricted 1,084,195
Committed 6,476,134
Unassigned 8,915,309
Total $16,537,131

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The General Fund accounts for all the general services provided by the Town. At the end of
2022, the fund balance of the General Fund totaled $9,101,802, an increase of $1.7 million
over the fund balance at the end of 2021. The General Fund’s primary source of revenue is
property and sales taxes and to a lesser degree, fees for franchise agreements and services
such as building permits and plan checking.

Property tax revenues of $1.6 million came in right at budget estimates for 2022 and sales
taxes exceeded budget estimates coming in at $2.6 million for the year. These two revenue
sources accounted for 62% of all General Fund revenues, which totaled $6.8 millionin 2022.
Franchise fees and building permits also exceeded estimates for the year coming in at
$234,962 and $552,177, respectively.

viii
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

In 2022, expenditures in the General Fund totaled just under $4 million. Of this total,
$379,979 was expended on capital projects, the largest of which was $357,336 for the
expansion of the Municipal Service Building, housing Town administrative offices.

In 2022 administrative services provided by the General Fund were charged to the street,
water, sewer, drainage, and park funds in the total amount of $3.1 million as detailed in the
2022 budget document. This methodology provides for full costing of services in these funds
and reimburses the General Fund for services provided to other funds. To better understand
the expenditures for the General Fund shown in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance it is important to know that this $3.1 million was allocated to
the General Fund as follows: $2,469,625 to that General Government category, and
$631,107 to the Public Works expenditure category in that Statement (see page 30). This
method of applying administrative overhead charges resulted in net General Government
expenditures of $1,311,126 (total before allocation of overhead was $3,780,751) and
expenditures of $631,196 in net Public Works expenditures (total before allocation of
overhead was $1,262,303).
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The Town of Wellington’s net investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business type activities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted to
$81.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation and debt) and $64.6 million, respectively.
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery
and equipment, park facilities and roads.

Town of Wellington
Capital Assets at Year End

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2021 2021

Land and Water
Rights: $2,073,796 $1,716,459 $8,432,324 $7,405,793 | $10,506,120 $9,122,252
Buildings and
Improvements: 1,836,047 1,836,047 - - 1,836,047 1,836,047
Infrastructure: 3,688,126 3,688,126 - - 3,688,126 3,688,126
Streets and
Improvements: 10,737,796 11,480,009 - - 10,737,796 11,480,009
Equipment: (86,301) 147,714 - - (86,301) 147,714
Utility Systems
and Equipment: - - 32,041,750 33,171,747 32,041,750 33,171,747
Constructionin
Progress: - - 23,142,939 5,147,604 23,142,939 5,147,604

TOTAL $18,249,464 $18,868,355 $63,617,013  $45,725,144 $81,866,477 $64,593,499

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found on pages 21 and 22 of

this report.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Long-term debt. At the end of 2022, the Town of Wellington had total debt outstanding of
$67.8 million, compared with $26.0 million in 2021 (not including $191,849 in accrued
compensated absences atyear end). The Town’s debt represents bonds and loans secured
solely by specified revenue sources, such as Water and Sewer Fund user fees.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2022

Town of Wellington

Outstanding Debt at Year End

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

2014 Park Fund
Loan: $781,321 $1,027,920 - - $781,321 $1,027,920
1982 CWCB Loan -
Water: - - $69,563 $108,627 $69,563 $108,627
1984 GO Bond -
Water: - - $28,000 $55,000 $28,000 $55,000
2001 CWRPDA
Loan - Water: - - - $36,027 - $36,027
2002 CWRPDA
Loan - Sewer: - - - $335,835 - $335,835
2014 GO Bond -
Sewer: - - -| $1,770,000 -| $1,770,000
2019 CWRPDA -
Water: - - | $20,932,534 | $21,982,391 | $20,932,534 | $21,982,391

- Premium: - - $541,241 $640,750 $541,241 $640,750
2022 WWTP - Loan

Payable: - - | $42,441,425 - | $42,441,425 -

- Premium: $2,791,342 - | $2,791,342 -

TOTAL $781,321  $1,027,920 $66,804,105 $24,928,629 $67,585,426 $25,956,550

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found on pages 22 to 26.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The Annual Budget guides the efficient and effective use of Town resources, focusing on the
highest priorities of the Town’s citizens as represented by the Board of Trustees (the Board).
Through the Budget process, the Board establishes priorities and allocates resources to
meet their goals. With the approval of the 2022 Budget, the Board appropriated $50.1 million
for expenditure in that year (not including transfers), a 34.7% increase over the budget in
2020. This amountwas made up of $18.0 million for operations in all funds and $32.1 million
for capital projects. The largest share of the capital projects budget went to the Water
Treatment and Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion projects.

Xi
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2022

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Wellington’s
finances for all those with an interest in the Town’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to: Town of Wellington Finance Department, 8225 Third Street (PO Box
127), Wellington, Colorado 80549.

Xii
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

Assets
Cash and Investments
Property Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Loss on Debt Refunding, Net of Accumulated Amortization

Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Retainage payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Accrued Interest Payable
Deposits and Escrows
Deferred Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities

Due within one year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Property Taxes

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Positions
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Street Paving and Maintenance
Open Space and Parks
Emergencies
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See Notes to the Financial Statements.

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals
$ 17,318,656 $ 25,319,791 §$§ 42,638,447
1,681,506 88,830 1,770,336
9,561 790,115 799,676
962,267 - 962,267
84,313 63,219,741 63,304,054
- 67,916 67,916
61,493 - 61,493
2,073,796 31,575,263 33,649,059
16,175,668 32,041,750 48,217,418
38,367,260 153,103,406 191,470,666
- 838 838
957,080 10,337,150 11,294,230
137,071 151,736 288,807
246,291 - 246,291
2,044 754,308 756,352
558,717 3,500 562,217
- 1,311,669 1,311,669
257,034 1,613,745 1,870,779
636,819 65,269,677 65,906,496
2,795,056 79,441,785 82,236,841
1,681,506 88,830 1,770,336
1,681,506 88,830 1,770,336
17,468,143 49,616,182 67,084,325
4,437,290 - 4,437,290
2,998,039 - 2,998,039
125,000 - 125,000
8,862,226 23,957,447 32,819,673
$ 33,890,698 $ 73,573,629 $ 107,464,327

4
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Change in Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental  Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Totals
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 2285434 $ 363,148 $ 844,007 $ - $ (1,078,279) $ - $  (1,078,279)
Public Safety 1,655,435 17,581 - - (1,637,854) - (1,637,854)
Public Works 3,022,364 143,760 312,481 - (2,566,123) - (2,566,123)
Parks and Recreation 680,113 276,094 38,537 - (365,482) - (365,482)
Total Governmental
Activities 7,643,346 800,583 1,195,025 - (5,647,738) - (5,647,738)
Business-Type Activities
Water Utility 6,254,116 4,965,526 1,311,669 1,170,667 - 1,193,746 1,193,746
Wastewater Utility 3,849,281 2,041,012 - 792,325 - (1,015,944) (1,015,944)
Storm Water Utility 574,303 678,762 14,091 - - 118,550 118,550
Total Business-Type
10,677,700 7,685,300 1,325,760 1,962,992 - 296,352 296,352
Total Primary Government $ 18,321,046 ¢ 8485883 ¢ 2,520,785 § 1,962,992 (5,647,738) 296,352 (5,351,386)
General Revenues
Property Taxes 1,648,885 175,721 1,824,606
Specific Ownership Taxes 103,916 - 103,916
Sales and Use Taxes 6,101,904 - 6,101,904
Other Taxes 9,573 - 9,573
Impact Taxes 230,860 - 230,860
Cigarette Taxes 5,115 - 5,115
Franchise Taxes 234,962 - 234,962
Investment Income 211,907 406,365 618,272
Other Revenues 4,970 - 4,970
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets 14,442 2,444 16,886
Transfers (1,043,000) 1,043,000 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 7,523,534 1,627,530 9,151,064
Change in Net Position 1,875,796 1,923,882 3,799,678
Net Position, Beginning of Year 32,014,902 71,649,747 103,664,649
Net Position, End of Year $ 33,890,698 $ 73,573,629 $ 107,464,327

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2022

(Nonmajor)
Conservation
General Street Park Trust Totals
Assets
Cash and Investments $ 10,171,692 $ 4,171,885 $ 2,015884 $ 959,195 $ 17,318,656
Property Taxes Receivable 1,681,506 - - - 1,681,506
Accounts Receivable 9,561 - - - 9,561
Other Receivable 542,132 285,090 135,045 - 962,267
Cash with Fiscal Agent - 69,980 14,333 - 84,313
Prepaid Expenses 61,493 - - - 61,493
Total Assets $ 12,466,384 $ 4,526,955 § 2,165,262 $ 959,195 ¢ 20,117,796
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 740,997 $ 89,665 $ 126,418 $ -9 957,080
Retainage Payable 137,071 - - - 137,071
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 246,291 - - - 246,291
Deposits and Escrow 558,717 - - - 558,717
Total Liabilities 1,683,076 89,665 126,418 - 1,899,159
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Property Taxes 1,681,506 - - - 1,681,506
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,681,506 - - - 1,681,506
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 61,493 - - - 61,493
Restricted:
Emergencies 125,000 - - - 125,000
Open Space - - - 959,195 959,195
Committed to:
Capital Improvements - 4,437,290 2,038,844 - 6,476,134
Unrestricted, Unassigned 8,915,309 - - - 8,915,309
Total Fund Balances 9,101,802 4,437,290 2,038,844 959,195 16,537,131

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances $ 12,466,384 $ 4,526,955 $ 2,165,262 $ 959,195 $ 20,117,796

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 6
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are Different Because:

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds $ 16,537,131

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in governmental funds 18,249,465

Long-term liabilities and related items are not due and payable in the current year and, therefore,
are not reported in governmental funds:

Park Loan Payable (781,321)
Accrued Interest Payable (2,045)
Compensated Absences Payable (112,532)
Total Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 33,890,698
See Notes to the Financial Statements. 7
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(Nonmajor)
Conservation
General Street Park Trust Totals
Revenues
Taxes 5,173,001 $ 1,744,786 1,186,568 $ - $ 8,104,355
Licenses and Permits 560,268 312,481 - 38,537 911,286
Intergovernmental 844,007 143,760 98,633 - 1,086,400
Charges for Services 17,581 - - - 17,581
Fines and Forfeitures 33,740 - 177,461 - 211,201
Investment Income 127,335 30,760 42,894 10,918 211,907
Miscellaneous 4,600 10,633 4179 - 19,412
Total Revenues 6,760,532 2,242,420 1,509,735 49,455 10,562,142
Expenditures
Current
General Government 680,019 - - - 680,019
Public Safety 1,655,435 - - - 1,655,435
Public Works 1,262,303 1,308,294 - - 2,570,597
Parks and Recreation (375) - 1,515,074 - 1,514,699
Capital Outlay 379,979 187,242 13,624 - 580,845
Debt Service
Principal - - 246,599 - 246,599
Interest and Fees - - 22,861 - 22,861
Total Expenditures 3,977,361 1,495,536 1,798,158 - 7,271,055
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 2,783,171 746,884 (288,423) 49,455 3,291,087
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (1,043,000) - - - (1,043,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)  (1,043,000) - - - (1,043,000)
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,740,171 746,884 (288,423) 49,455 2,248,087
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 7,361,631 3,690,406 2,327,267 909,740 14,289,044
Fund Balances, End of Year 9,101,802 $ 4,437,290 2038844 $ 959,195 $ 16,537,131
See Notes to the Financial Statements. 8
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:
Net Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds $ 2,248,087

Capital outlays to purchase or construct capital assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.

However, for governmental activities those costs are capitalized in the statement of net position and are

allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation expense in the statement of activities.
Capital Outlay 566,781
Depreciation Expense (1,185,671)

Repayments of debt principal are expenditures in governmental funds, but the repayments reduce long-term liabilities
in the statement of net position and do not affect the statement of activities.
Park Loan Payable 246,599

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Accrued Interest Payable -
Compensated Absences Payable -

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,875,796
See Notes to the Financial Statements. 9
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Town of Wellington, Colorado

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Property Tax Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Loss on Debt Refunding,
Net of Accumulated Amortization

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Deposits and Escrow
Accrued Interest Payable
Deferred Revenue
Current Portion of Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences
Bonds Payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Property Taxes

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See Notes to the Financial Statements.

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2022

Water Sewer Drainage Totals
19,946,941 4,123,470 $ 1,249,380 25,319,791
88,830 - - 88,830
463,012 251,349 75,754 790,115
21,662,025 41,557,716 - 63,219,741
54,722 13,194 - 67,916
42,215,530 45,945,729 1,325,134 89,486,393
17,511,046 14,064,217 - 31,575,263
14,594,020 14,808,101 2,639,629 32,041,750
32,105,066 28,872,318 2,639,629 63,617,013
74,320,596 74,818,047 3,964,763 153,103,406
838 - - 838
4,614,969 5,721,100 1,081 10,337,150
79,467 72,269 - 151,736
3,500 - - 3,500
162,754 591,554 - 754,308
1,311,669 - - 1,311,669
1,166,046 447,699 - 1,613,745
7,338,405 6,832,622 1,081 14,172,108
31,218 39,295 8,804 79,317
20,405,292 44,785,068 - 65,190,360
20,436,510 44,824,363 8,804 65,269,677
27,774,915 51,656,985 9,885 79,441,785
88,830 - - 88,830
88,830 - - 88,830
27,549,566 19,436,872 2,629,744 49,616,182
18,908,123 3,724,190 1,325,134 23,957,447
46,457,689 23,161,062 $ 3,954,878 73,573,629
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Management Fees
Personnel Service
Operations and Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Tax Revenue and Impact Fees
Intergovernmental Revenue
Investment Income

Interest Expense
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers

Capital Contributions and Transfers
Plant Investment Fees
Cash in Lieu of Fees
Transfers In

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to the Financial Statements.

Water Sewer Drainage Totals
4,965,526 2,041,012 $ 678,762 7,685,300
4,965,526 2,041,012 678,762 7,685,300
2,058,854 - - 2,058,854

974,426 842,378 242,833 2,059,637
1,565,689 1,158,764 99,676 2,824,129
533,757 45,193 128,472 707,422
801,659 662,702 103,322 1,567,683
5,934,385 2,709,037 574,303 9,217,725
(968,859) (668,025) 104,459 (1,532,425)
85,593 - 90,128 175,721
1,311,669 - 14,091 1,325,760
258,330 131,216 16,819 406,365
(319,731) (1,140,244) - (1,459,975)
2,384 60 - 2,444
1,338,245 (1,008,968) 121,038 450,315
369,386 (1,676,993) 225,497 (1,082,110)
654,415 792,325 - 1,446,740
516,252 - - 516,252
653,000 390,000 - 1,043,000
2,193,053 (494,668) 225,497 1,923,882
44,264,636 23,655,730 3,729,381 71,649,747
46,457,689 23,161,062 $ 3,954,878 73,573,629
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Town of Wellington, Colorado

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Employees
Cash Payments to Vendors and Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers to Other Funds, net

Net Cash Used in Noncapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related

Financing Activities
Tap Fees Received
Intergovernmental Receipts
Plant Investment Fees
Cash Received in Lieu of Fees
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
Purchase of Capital Assets
Debt Principal Payments
Debt Interest Payments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Received

Net Increase In Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Net Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

See Notes to the Financial Statements.

Water Sewer Drainage Totals

$ 4,932,000 $ 1,944,902 $ 675113 $ 7,552,015
(564,972) (525,931) (60,837) (1,151,740)
(1,411,359) 3,568,092 (872,826) 1,283,907
2,955,669 4,987,063 (258,550) 7,684,182
653,000 390,000 - 1,043,000
653,000 390,000 - 1,043,000
3,223,568 - 90,128 3,313,696
1,311,669 - 14,091 1,325,760
654,415 792,325 - 1,446,740
516,252 - - 516,252

- 3,942,284 - 3,942,284
(8,325,824) (11,131,284) - (19,457,108)
(1,097,045) (2,318,166) - (3,415,211)
(330,503) (633,405) - (963,908)
(4,047,468) (9,348,246) 104,219 (13,291,495)
103,919 131,216 16,819 251,954
(334,880) (3,839,967) (137,512) (4,312,359)
20,281,821 7,963,437 1,386,892 29,632,150

$ 19,946,941 $ 4,123,470 $ 1,249,380 $ 25,319,791
$ (968,859) $ (668,025) $ 104,459 $  (1,532,425)
801,659 662,702 103,322 1,567,683
(33,526) (96,110) (3,649) (133,285)
3,156,395 5,088,496 (462,682) 7,782,209

$ 2,955,669 $ 4,987,063 $ (258,550) $ 7,684,182
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2022

Library
Custodial Trust
Fund
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 541,755
Total Assets 541,755
Net Position
Restricted Net Position 541,755
Total Net Position $ 541,755
See Notes to the Financial Statements. 13
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Statement of Changes in Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Library

Custodial Trust
Fund
Additions

Impact Fees $ 21,250
Change in Net Position 21,250
Net Position, Beginning of Year 520,505
Net Position, End of Year $ 541,755

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 14
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Wellington, Colorado (the Town) was founded on November 10, 1905 as a statutory
town. The Town’s major operations include general government, public safety, public works,
parks and recreation, economic development, and the library.

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Town’s
accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of the Town, organizations for which the Town is financially
accountable and organizations that raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of
the Town. All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not
legally separate are part of the Town. Legally separate organizations for which the Town is
financially accountable are considered part of the reporting entity. Financial accountability exists
if the Town appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and is able to impose
its will on the organization, or if there is potential for the organization to provide benefits to, or
impose financial burdens on, the Town.

Based on the application of this criteria, the Town does not include additional organizations in its
reporting entity.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all activities of the Town. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Exceptions to this general rule are
charges for interfund services that are reasonably equivalent to the services provided.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues.

15
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collected within the current year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
year. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current year.

Taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest associated with the current year are considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current year. All
other revenues are considered measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences,
are recorded only when payment is due.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a specific use, it is the Town’s
practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

In the fund financial statements, the Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the Town, except those accounted for in another fund.

The Street Fund is a special revenue fund, which accounts for motor vehicle ownership
taxes, motor vehicle registration taxes and highway user taxes. In addition, this fund

accounts for impact fees relating to new construction from building permits. Amounts
collected are disbursed for the maintenance of the Town’s streets and alleys.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The Park Fund is a special revenue fund, which accounts for sales taxes, use taxes, motor
vehicle use taxes, and open space sales taxes. In addition, this fund accounts for impact
fees relating to new construction from building permits. Amounts collected are disbursed
for the maintenance of the Town’s parks and open spaces.

In addition, the Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund accounts for the financial activities associated with the provision of water
services to the Town residents.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the financial activities associated with the operation and
maintenance of the sewer system.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position/Fund Balances

Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include
investment with original maturities of three months or less.

Receivables - Receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced
by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Prepaid Expenses - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future years and are
reported as prepaid expenses using the consumption method.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include land, buildings, utility systems, equipment, and all
infrastructure owned by the Town, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at the acquisition value on the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives
are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives.

Buildings and Improvements 10 - 40 years
Improvements Other than Buildings 5-50 years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-20 years
Utility Systems 50 years
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Property taxes earned but levied for a subsequent year are
reported as deferred inflows of resources in the financial statements.

Compensated Absences - Employees of the Town are allowed to accumulate unused vacation
and sick leave up to a maximum based on years of service. Upon termination of employment
from the Town, employees with at least ten years of service will be paid for one-third of their
accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 320 hours, and for all accumulated vacation leave
up to a maximum of 240 hours, at their current pay rate.

A liability for these compensated absences is reported when earned in the proprietary funds and
when due in the governmental funds. A long-term liability has been reported in the government-
wide financial statement for the accrued compensated absences.

Long-Term Debt - In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities. Debt premiums, discounts and accounting losses resulting from debt refunding’s are
deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method. In the
governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Debt issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the debt proceeds, are reported as current
expenses or expenditures.

Net Position/Fund Balances - In the government-wide and fund financial statements, net position
and fund balances are restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are externally
imposed. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report committed fund balances
when the Board of Trustees approves an ordinance that places constraints on the use of
resources for a specific purpose. Assigned fund balances arise from an informal action of the
Board of Trustees.

The Town has not established a formal policy for its use of restricted and unrestricted fund
balances. However, if both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for a specific
purpose, the Town uses restricted fund balances first, followed by committed, assigned, and
unassigned balances.

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1, are levied the following
December, and collected in the subsequent calendar year. Taxes are payable in full on April 30
or in two installments on February 28 and June 15. The County Treasurer’'s Office collects
property taxes and remits to the Town on a monthly basis. Since property tax revenues are
collected in arrears during the succeeding year, receivables and corresponding deferred inflows
of resources are reported at year end.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events

We have evaluated subsequent events through January 31, 2025. The date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Note 2: Cash and Investments

A summary of cash at December 31, 2022, follows:

Total
Petty Cash $ 300
Cash in Bank 6,907,478
Cash held in Colotrust 35,730,669
Total $ 42,638,447
Cash is reported in the financial statements as follows:
Total
Cash $ 42,638,447
Restricted Cash -
Total $ 42,638,447

Cash Deposits

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires all local government entities to
deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by State regulations.
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible
collateral as determined by the PDPA. The PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single
collateral pool for all public funds held. The pool is to be maintained by another institution or held
in trust for all uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must be at
least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits. At December 31, 2022, the Town had bank
deposits of $6,998,255 collateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s agent but
not in the Town’s name.

Investments
The Town is required to comply with State statutes which specify investment instruments meeting

defined rating, maturity, and concentration risk criteria in which the Town may invest, which
include the following. State statutes do not address custodial risk.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency securities

Certain international agency securities

General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks

Commercial paper

Local government investment pools

Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds

Guaranteed investment contracts (GICs)

Interest Rate Risk - State statutes generally limit the maturity of investment securities to five years
from the date of purchase unless the governing board authorizes the investment for a period in
excess of five years.

Credit Risk - State statutes limit certain investments to those with specified ratings from nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations, depending on the type of investment.

Concentration of Credit Risk - State statutes do not limit the amount the Town may invest in one
issuer of investment securities, except for corporate securities.

Local Government Investment Pools - At December 31, 2022, the Town had $35,730,669
invested in the Colorado Liquid Asset Trust (ColoTrust). The pool is an investment vehicle
established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. The Colorado Division
of Securities administers and enforces the requirements of creating and operating the pools. The
pools operate in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 2a-7. The pool
is measured at the net asset value per share, with each share valued at $1. The pool is rated
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. Investments of the pool are limited to those allowed by State
statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services in
connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. The custodian’s internal records
identify the investments owned by the participating governments.

Restricted Cash and Investments

At December 31, 2022, the Town reported restricted cash of $41,557,716 Sewer Fund. The
restricted cash represents unspent loan proceeds.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 3: Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2022, is

summarized below.

Balance Balance
12/31/21 Additions Transfers Deletions 12/31/22

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Land and Water Rights $ 1,716,459 $ 357,337 $ - $ - $ 2,073,796
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 1,716,459 357,337 - - 2,073,796
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Buildings and Improvements 2,165,670 - - - 2,165,670

Infrastructure 6,926,084 - - - 6,926,084

Streets and Improvements 25,291,449 209,444 - - 25,500,893

Equipment 629,062 - - - 629,062
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 35,012,265 209,444 - - 35,221,709
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and Improvements (329,623) - - - (329,623)

Infrastructure (3,237,958) - - - (3,237,958)

Streets and Improvements (13,811,440) (951,657) - - (14,763,097)

Equipment (481,348) (234,015) - - (715,363)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (17,860,369) (1,185,672) - - (19,046,041)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, net 17,151,896 (976,228) - - 16,175,668
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 18,868,355 $ (618,891) $ - $ - $ 18,249,464

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities Total
Public Safety $ -
Public Works 951,657
Parks and Recreation 234,015
Total $ 1,185,672

21

Page 40 of 95



Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 3: Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended December 31, 2022, is
summarized below.

Balance Balance

Business-Type Activities 12/31/21 Additions Transfers Deletions 12/31/22
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Land and Water Rights $ 7,405,793 $ 1,026,531 $ - $ - % 8,432,324

Construction in Progress 5,147,604 17,995,335 - - 23,142,939
Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated 12,553,397 19,021,866 - - 31,575,263
Capital Assets, being depreciated

Utilities Systems 49,480,348 71,057 3,827 - 49,555,232

Machinery and Equipment 2,199,865 366,628 (3,827) - 2,562,666
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 51,680,213 437,685 - - 52,117,898
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Utilities Systems (17,259,768) (1,338,688) - - (18,598,456)

Machinery and Equipment (1,248,698) (228,994) - - (1,477,692)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (18,508,466) (1,567,682) - - (20,076,148)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, net 33,171,747 (1,129,997) - - 32,041,750
Business - Type Activities Capital Assets, net ¢ 45,725,144 ¢ 17,891,869 § - $ - $ 63,617,013

Depreciation expense was charged to various business-type activities of the Town as follows:

Business-type Activities Total
Water $ 801,658
Sewer 662,702
Drainage 103,322
Total $ 1,567,682

Note 4: Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities

Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the governmental activities for the year
ended December 31, 2022:

Balance Balance Due Within
12/31/21 Additions Payments 12/31/22 One Year
2014 Park Fund Loan $ 1,027,920 $ - $ (246,599) $ 781,321 § 253,912
Compensated Absences 112,532 - - 112,532 3,122
Total $ 1,140,452 § - $ (246,599) $ 893,853 $ 257,034
22
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December 31, 2022

Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

In 2014, the Town borrowed $2,400,000 from First National Bank, with monthly principal and
interest payments beginning in 2016 and maturing in 2029. The loan requires monthly payments
of $22,455 with interest fixed at 2.31%. The Park Fund is required to maintain a coverage ratio
of 1.25% of the required debt service. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Town met the

coverage requirement.

Annual debt service requirements for the outstanding Certificate of Participation at December 31,

2022, were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 253912 §$ 15,548 §$ 269,460
2024 259,892 9,568 269,460
2025 267,517 3,384 270,901
Total $ 781,321 § 28,500 $ 809,821

Compensated absences are expected to be liquidated primarily with revenues of the General

Funds.

Business-Type Activities

Following are the changes in long-term debt of the business-type activities for the year ended

December 31, 2022:

Balance Balance Due Within

12/31/21 Additions Payments 12/31/22 One Year
1982 CWCB Loan - Water $ 108,626 §$ - 3 (39,063) $ 69,563 $ 69,563
1984 GO Bond - Water 55,000 - (27,000) 28,000 28,000
2001 CWPRDA Loan - Water 36,027 - (36,027) - -
2002 CWRPDA Loan - Sewer 335,835 - (335,835) -
2014 GO Bond - Sewer 1,770,000 - (1,770,000) - -
2019 CWRPDA - Water 21,982,391 - (1,049,857) 20,932,534 1,068,483
Premium 640,750 - (99,509) 541,241 -
2022 WWTP Loan Payable 42,653,756 (212,331) 42,441,425 447,699
Premium 2,846,244 (54,902) 2,791,342 -
Compensated Absences 79,317 - - 79,317 -

Total $ 25,007,946 $ 45500,000 $

(3,624,524) $ 66,883422 §

1,613,745

1982 Colorado Water Conservation Board Water (CWCB) Note Payable

During 1982, the Town entered into a loan agreement with the Colorado Water Conservation
Board requiring annual payments of $57,593, including interest at 4.0% through December 31,
2023. Revenues of the Town are pledged in an amount sufficient to pay the annual amounts due

under the loan agreement.
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements for the outstanding note payable at December 31, 2022, were
as follows.

Year Ended December 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 69,563 $ 2215 $ 71,778
Total $ 69,563 $ 2215 § 71,778

1984 General Obligation Water Bond

During 1984, the Town entered into a general Obligation (GO) water bond in the amount of
$500,000. The bond is due in escalating installments and matures on December 1, 2023. Interest
is fixed at 5.0%.

Annual debt service requirements for the outstanding bond at December 31, 2022, were as
follows.

Year Ended December 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 28,000 $ 1,400 $ 29,400
Total $ 28,000 $ 1,400 § 29,400

2001 Colorado Water Resource and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA) Water Note
Payable

In 2001, the Town entered into a loan payable with CWRPDA requiring semi-annual payments of
$36,747, including interest at 4.0% through May 1, 2022. The loan was a special revenue
obligation of the Water Fund payable from water rates, fees, standby charges, and charges from
the use and operation of the system and from such other funds legally available after the payment
of operation and maintenance expenses of the system. The loan was paid in full during 2022.

2002 Colorado Water Resource and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA) Sewer Note
Payable

In 2002, the Town entered into a loan payable with the Colorado Water Resource and Power
Development Authority. The 20-year note required varying semi-annual payments, including
interest at 3.71%, through August 1, 2002. The loan was a special revenue obligation of the
Sewer Fund payable from sewer rates, fees, standby charges, and charges from the use and
operation of the system and from such other funds legally available after the payment of operation
and maintenance expenses of the system. The loan was paid in full during 2022.

2014 General Obligation (GO) Sewer Bond
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued)

In 2014, the Town entered into a 20-year general obligation (GO) sewer bond in the amount of
$2,400,000, due in 2024. The special revenue bond has a variable interest rate, not to exceed
4.0%, and contains escalating principal payments. During the year ended 2022, the Town paid
the bond in full.

2019 Colorado Water Resource and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA) Note Payable

In 2019, the Town entered into a loan payable with the Colorado Water Resource and Power
Development Authority. The 20-year loan requires varying semi-annual principal and interest
payments, with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%, through Augst 1, 2039. The loan is a special
revenue obligation of the Water Fund payable from water rates, fees, standby charges, and
charges from the use and operation of the system and from such other funds legally available
after the payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system. As of December 31,
2022, the Town had remaining funds of $21,662,025 to be received and is reflected as cash held
with fiscal agent in the accompanying financial statements.

Annual debt service requirements for the outstanding bond at December 31, 2022, were as
follows.

Year Ended December 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,068,483 $ 201,050 $ 1,269,533
2024 1,091,978 180,550 1,272,528
2025 1,109,550 160,300 1,269,850
2026 1,129,785 141,050 1,270,835
2027 - - -
2028-2032 5,901,906 451,950 6,353,856
2033-2036 6,412,390 181,000 6,593,390
2037-2039 4,218,442 31,650 4,250,092
Total $ 20,932,534 § 1,347,550 ¢$ 22,280,084

2022 Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP)

In 2022, the Town entered into a loan payable with the Colorado Water Resource and Power
Development Authority (CWRPDA). The 30-year loan requires varying semi-annual principal and
interest payments, with interest ranging from 2.0% to 2.5%, through August 1, 2052. The loan is
a special revenue obligation of the Sewer Fund payable from sewer rates, fees, standby charges,
and charges from the use and operation of the system and from such other funds legally available
after the payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system. As of December 31,
2022, the Town had remaining funds of $21,662,025 to be received and is reflected as cash held
with fiscal agent in the accompanying financial statements.
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements for the outstanding bond at December 31, 2022, were as
follows.

Year Ended December 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 447699 $ 1,078,500 $ 1,526,199
2024 936,944 1,064,000 2,000,944
2025 968,724 1,033,750 2,002,474
2026 1,000,567 1,022,750 2,023,317
2027 1,028,709 971,000 1,999,709
2028-2032 5,649,150 4,358,000 10,007,150
2033-2037 6,532,340 3,475,750 10,008,090
2038-2042 7,467,994 2,537,750 10,005,744
2043-2047 8,417,333 1,579,250 9,996,583
2048-2052 9,991,965 633,250 10,625,215
Total $ 42441425 ¢ 17,754,000 $ 60,195,425

Water Fund Rate Maintenance

Pursuant to the 2019 CWRPDA loan agreement and the 2022 WWTP loan agreement, the Town
shall establish, levy, and collect rents, rates, and other charges for the products and services
provided by the Town’s water system and sewer system, respectively, in amounts sufficient to (1)
meet the operation and maintenance expenses, (2) comply with all covenants in the loan
agreements, and (3) pay at least 110% of the debt service on all indebtedness or at least 110%
of all such debt if connection fees are included as a source of payment.

Per the loan agreements, in the event that gross revenue collected during a fiscal year are not
sufficient to meet the requirements set forth in the Rate Covenant contained in the loan
agreements, the Town is required to hire an independent firm of accountants or consulting
engineers to do a rate study within 90 days of year-end to recommend a rate increase to meet
the loan agreement. The Town shall within six months of receipt of such study, adopt rates, fees
and charges for the use of the systems, based upon the recommendations contained in such
study, which provide compliance with said rate covenants.

Note 5: Interfund Transactions

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2022, were comprised of the following:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
Water Fund General Fund $ 653,000
Sewer Fund General Fund 390,000
Total $ 1,043,000
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Note 5: Interfund Transactions (Continued)

During 2022, the Board of Trustees authorized an annual transfer of funds between the General
Fund and the Water and Sewer Funds. The purpose of the transfer is to support the operations
of those funds.

Note 6: Risk Management

Public Entity Risk Pool

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. For these risks of
loss, the Town participates in the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA), a
separate and independent governmental and legal entity formed by intergovernmental agreement
by member municipalities pursuant to the provisions of 24-10-115.5, Colorado Revised Statutes,
and the Colorado Constitution, Article X1V, Section 18(2).

The purposes of CIRSA are to provide members with defined liability, property, and workers
compensation coverages and to assist members to prevent and reduce losses and injuries to
municipal property and to persons or property which might result in claims being made against
members of CIRSA, their employees and officers.

It is the intent of the members of CIRSA to create an entity in perpetuity which will administer and
use funds contributed by the members to defend and indemnify, in accordance with the bylaws,
any member of CIRSA against stated liability of loss, to the limit of the financial resources of
CIRSA. It is also the intent of the members to have CIRSA provide continuing stability and
availability of needed coverages at reasonable costs. All income and assets of CIRSA shall be
at all times dedicated to the exclusive benefit of its members.

Note 7: Retirement Commitments

Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

The Town contributes to a single-employer defined contribution retirement plan on behalf of its
employees. All employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after one full year of employment.
The Town is required to contribute 6% of each participating employee’s compensation. No
employee contributions are required. Employees become vested in the Town’s contributions at
20% annually after one year of employment. Participants become fully vested after five years of
service. The contribution requirements of the Town and eligible employees are established and
may be amended by the Board of Trustees.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Town contributed $195,900 to the Plan, equal to the
required contributions.
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Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

The Town is from time to time involved in various threatened and pending litigation. However,
the outcome of this litigation cannot be determined at this time.

TABOR Amendment

In November 1992, Colorado voters passed the TABOR Amendment to the State Constitution
which limits state and local government taxing powers and imposes spending limitations. The
Town is subject to the TABOR Amendment. Fiscal year 1992 provides the basis for limits in future
years, to which may be applied allowable increases for inflation and property valuation. Revenue
received in excess of the limitations may be required to be refunded unless the Town'’s electorate
vote to retain the revenue. The TABOR Amendment is subject to many interpretations, but the
Town believes it is in substantial compliance with the Amendment.

In November 1994, voters permitted the Town, without increasing or adding any taxes of any kind,
to collect, retain or expend revenues generated from all sources during 1994 and each
subsequent year for trails, parks, and open space, storm water facilities and drainage, street, curb
and sidewalk construction, repair and maintenance, police services, and for other basic municipal
services and lawful purposes, without limitation.

The Town has established an emergency reserve, representing 3% of qualifying expenditures, as

required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2022, the emergency reserve was reported as
restricted fund balance in the General Fund, in the amount of $228,191.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes
Property Taxes $ 1,653,374 $ 1,653,374 §$ 1,648,885 $ (4,489)
Sales and Use Taxes 2,524,069 2,524,069 3,274,466 750,397
Cigarette Taxes 4,300 4,300 5,115 815
Severance Taxes 42,538 42,538 90,019 47,481
Franchise Taxes 199,400 199,400 234,962 35,562
Other Taxes 7,500 7,500 9,573 2,073
Total Taxes 4,431,181 4,431,181 5,263,020 831,839
Licenses and Permits
Liquor Licenses 1,200 1,200 854 (346)
Building Permits 481,800 481,800 542,918 61,118
Business Licenses 17,500 17,500 15,360 (2,140)
Other Licenses - - 1,136 1,136
Total Licenses and Permits 500,500 500,500 560,268 59,768
Intergovernmental
Other Intergovernmental 3,757,592 3,767,242 753,988 (3,013,254)
Total Intergovernmental 3,757,592 3,767,242 753,988 (3,013,254)
Charges for Services
Recreation/Community Center 10,000 10,000 6,843 (3,157)
Sales of Goods 5,000 5,000 8,100 3,100
Rents 9,000 9,000 - (9,000)
Other Charges for Services 17,700 17,700 18,797 1,097
Total Charges for Services 41,700 41,700 33,740 (7,960)
Fines and Forfeitures 4,000 4,000 17,581 13,581
Investment Income 5,200 5,200 127,335 122,135
Other Revenue 3,000 3,000 4,600 1,600
Total Revenues 8,743,173 8,752,823 6,760,532 (1,992,291)
(Continued)
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 29
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Expenditures
Current
General Government
Personnel Services
Insurance
Professional Fees
Repairs and Maintenance
Supplies
Telephone and Utilities
Travel and Training
Other Expense
Overhead Allocation
Total General Government
Public Safety
Personnel Services
Fuel and Automotive
Repairs and Maintenance
Telephone and Utilities
Other Expense
Total Public Safety
Public Works
Personnel Services
Fuel and Automotive
Professional Fees
Repairs and Maintenance
Supplies
Telephone and Utilities
Travel and Training
Other Expense
Overhead Allocation
Total Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Cemetery
Other Expense
Total Parks and Recreation

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(Continued)
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 2,486,376 2,486,376 1,766,246 $ 720,130
160,000 160,000 169,320 (9,320)
724,798 724,798 578,107 146,691
31,550 31,550 25,295 6,255
38,675 38,675 36,120 2,555
108,400 108,400 90,809 17,591
59,822 59,822 18,497 41,325
1,144,600 1,144,600 1,096,357 48,243
(2,469,625) (2,469,625) (2,469,625) -
2,284,596 2,284,596 1,311,126 973,470
1,569,976 1,569,976 1,630,834 (60,858)
- - 7,420 (7,420)
17,000 17,000 15,126 1,874
- - 1,376 (1,376)
1,000 1,000 679 321
1,587,976 1,587,976 1,655,435 (67,459)
1,581,456 1,581,456 942,500 638,956
18,000 18,000 20,001 (2,001)
60,000 60,000 53,406 6,594
169,000 169,000 153,027 15,973
25,700 25,700 20,779 4,921
41,000 41,000 44,696 (3,696)
22,000 22,000 4,595 17,405
61,559 61,559 23,299 38,260
(631,107) (631,107) (631,107) -
1,347,608 1,347,608 631,196 716,412
30,000 30,000 - 30,000
- - (375) 375
30,000 30,000 (375) 30,375
1,686,100 250,000 379,979 (129,979)
6,936,280 5,500,180 3,977,361 1,522,819
1,806,893 3,252,643 2,783,171 (469,472)
(Continued)
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See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(Continued)
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 1,806,893 § 3,252,643 § 2,783,171 § (469,472)

- (1,043,000) (1,043,000) -

- (1,043,000) (1,043,000) -
1,806,893 2,209,643 1,740,171 (469,472)
7,361,631 7,361,631 7,361,631 -

$ 9,168,524 $ 9,571,274 $ 9,101,802 $ (469,472)

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 31
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Street Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Revenues
Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Tax
Total Tax Revenue

Licenses and Permits
Impact Fees
Other Licenses
Total Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental Revenues
Grants
Highway Users
Road and Bridge
Total Intergovernmental

Investment Income
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Public Works
Personnel Services
Management Fees
Equipment Rental
Fuel and Automotive
Professional Fees
Repairs and Maintenance
Supplies
Telephone and Utilities
Travel and Training
Other Expense
Capital Outlays
Total Public Works

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
100,000 $ 100,000 $ 103,916 $ 3,916
1,794,000 1,794,000 1,640,870 (153,130)
1,894,000 1,894,000 1,744,786 (149,214)
168,300 168,300 132,260 (36,040)
21,000 21,000 11,500 (9,500)
189,300 189,300 143,760 (45,540)
1,030,000 1,030,000 - (1,030,000)
242,000 242,000 281,611 39,611
40,000 40,000 30,870 (9,130)
1,312,000 1,312,000 312,481 (999,519)
750 750 30,760 30,010
1,000 1,000 10,633 9,633
3,397,050 3,397,050 2,242,420 (1,154,630)
- - 243,076 (243,076)
631,107 631,107 631,107 -
3,000 3,000 3,325 (325)
- - 7,308 (7,308)
32,000 32,000 - 32,000
- - 2,552 (2,552)
17,500 17,500 8,200 9,300
185,492 185,492 211,336 (25,844)
- - 850 (850)
4,000 4,000 200,540 (196,540)
2,115,991 2,115,991 187,242 1,928,749
2,989,090 2,989,090 1,495,536 1,493,554
407,960 407,960 746,884 338,924
(Continued)
32
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Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Changes in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Street Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(Continued)
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 407,960 $ 407,960 $ 746,884 $ 1,439,269
407,960 407,960 746,884 338,924
3,690,406 3,690,406 3,690,406 -
$ 4,098,366 $ 4,098,366 $ 4,437,290 $ 338,924
33

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Park Development Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes
Sales and Use Tax $ 850,000 $ 850,000 $ 1,186,568 $ 336,568
Licenses and Permits
Impact Fees 143,550 143,550 98,600 (44,950)
Other Licenses - - 33 33
Total Licenses and Permits 143,550 143,550 98,633 (44,917)
Charges for Services
Recreation/Community Center Charges 32,000 32,000 175,861 143,861
Rents - - 1,600 1,600
Total Charges for Services 32,000 32,000 177,461 145,461
Investment Income 500 500 42,894 42,394
Other Revenues
Donations - - 474 474
Sale of Capital Assets - - 3,705 3,705
Total Other Revenues - - 4179 4,179
Total Revenues 1,026,050 1,026,050 1,509,735 483,685
Expenditures
Public Works
Personnel Services 636,449 636,449 681,522 (45,073)
Management Fees 409,988 409,988 409,988 -
Equipment Rental 11,000 11,000 15,774 (4,774)
Fuel and Automotive 2,500 2,500 7,466 (4,966)
Professional Fees 41,000 41,000 31,621 9,379
Repairs and Maintenance 204,500 204,500 176,550 27,950
Supplies 34,700 34,700 25,967 8,733
Telephone and Utilities 53,150 53,150 51,379 1,771
Travel and Training 8,500 8,500 2,224 6,276
Other Expense 125,120 125,120 112,583 12,537
Debt Service
Principal 246,599 246,599 246,599 -
Interest 760,911 760,911 22,861 738,050
Capital Outlay 219,325 219,325 13,624 205,701
Total Public Works 2,753,742 2,753,742 1,798,158 955,584
Total Expenditures 2,753,742 2,753,742 1,798,158 955,584
Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (1,727,692) (1,727,692) (288,423) 1,439,269
(Continued)
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 34
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(Continued)
Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Excess Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures $  (1,727,692) $§ (1,727,692) $ (288,423) $ 1,439,269
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In - - - -
Net Changes in Fund Balance (1,727,692) (1,727,692) (288,423) 1,439,269
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 2,327,267 2,327,267 2,327,267 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 599,575 $ 599,575 $ 2,038,844 $ 1,439,269

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 35

Town of Wellington, Colorado
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2022

Note 1: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are adopted for all funds of the Town in accordance with State statutes. Budgets for the
governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Budgetary comparisons for the enterprise funds are presented on a non-
GAAP budgetary basis. Capital outlay and debt principal are budgeted as expenditures, but
depreciation is not budgeted.

The Town follows these procedures to establish the budgetary information reflected in the
financial statements:

¢ Management submits to the Board of Trustees a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

e Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

Prior to December 31, the budget is legally adopted through passage of a resolution.

e Town management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund. However, revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the Board of Trustees. State statutes stipulate that expenditures may not
exceed budget appropriations at the fund level.

o All appropriations lapse at year end.

36
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Revenues
Intergovernmental
Investment Income

Total Revenues

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer In

Net Changes in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Conservation Trust Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ -3 - 38,537 38,537
- - 10,918 10,918
] - 49,455 49,455
- - 49,455 49,455
909,740 909,740 909,740 -
$ 909,740 $ 909,740 959,195 49,455
37

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Water Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Utility Charges $ 5,752,566 $ 5,752,566 $ 4,961,270 $ (791,296)
Other Charges for Services - - 4,256 4,256
Tax Revenue & Impact Fees 85,593 85,593 85,593 -
Intergovernmental Revenues 10,500,804 10,500,804 1,311,669 (9,189,135)
Plant Investment Fees 782,100 782,100 654,415 (127,685)
Cash in Lieu of Fees 3,283,731 3,283,731 516,252 (2,767,479)
Gain on Sale of Assets - - 2,384 2,384
Investment Income 2,000 2,000 258,330 256,330
Transfers In - 653,000 653,000 -
Total Revenues 20,406,794 21,059,794 8,447,169 (12,612,625)
Expenditures
Operating Expenses
Raw Water Purchases 2,058,854 2,058,854 2,058,854 -
Management Fees 974,426 974,426 974,426 -
Personnel Services 530,825 530,825 737,610 (206,785)
Operating Supplies 59,200 59,200 55,917 3,283
Professional Fees 193,000 193,000 150,499 42,501
Repairs and Maintenance 213,000 213,000 256,643 (43,643)
Travel and Training 14,000 14,000 4,678 9,322
Treatment 180,000 180,000 241,867 (61,867)
Telephone and Utilities 127,700 127,700 118,074 9,626
Other Operating Expenses - - 401 (401)
Capital Outlay 13,890,303 13,890,303 1,988,675 11,901,628
Debt Services
Principal 1,151,947 1,151,947 1,151,947 -
Interest 436,480 436,480 319,731 116,749
Total Expenditures 19,829,735 19,829,735 8,059,322 11,770,413
Change in Net Position, Budgetary Basis $ 577,059 $ 1,230,059 387,847 $ (842,212)
Adjustments to GAAP Basis
Depreciation (801,659)
Capital Outlay 1,454,918
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt -
Debt Principal 1,151,947
Change in Net Position, GAAP Basis $ 2,193,053
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 38
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Sewer Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Revenues

Utility Charges
Intergovernmental Revenues
Plant Investment Fees
Gain on Sale of Assets
Investment Income
Transfers In

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Operating Expenses
Management Fees
Personnel Services
Operating Supplies
Professional Fees
Repairs and Maintenance
Travel and Training
Treatment
Telephone and Utilities
Other Operating Expenses

Capital Outlay

Debt Services
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Change in Net Position, Budgetary Basis

Adjustments to GAAP Basis
Depreciation
Capital Outlay
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
Debt Principal

Change in Net Position, GAAP Basis

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
2,970,864 $ 2,970,864 $ 2,041,012 §$ (929,852)
12,193,740 12,193,740 45,500,000 33,306,260
965,250 965,250 792,325 (172,925)
- - 60 60
3,000 3,000 131,216 128,216
- 390,000 390,000 -
16,132,854 16,522,854 48,854,613 32,331,759
842,378 842,378 842,378 -
477,333 477,333 696,417 (219,084)
29,000 29,000 17,625 11,375
98,000 98,000 147,447 (49,447)
117,500 117,500 115,961 1,539
12,000 12,000 3,820 8,180
50,000 50,000 33,729 16,271
143,800 143,800 140,877 2,923
5,000 5,000 2,888 2,112
14,221,986 14,221,986 3,524,730 10,697,256
445,835 445,835 2,105,835 (1,660,000)
71,552 71,552 1,140,244 (1,068,692)
16,514,384 16,514,384 8,771,951 7,742,433
(381,530) $ 8,470 40,082,662 $ 40,074,192
(662,702)
3,479,537
(45,500,000)
2,105,835
$ (494,668)
39
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Revenues
Utility Charges
Tax Revenue & Impact Fees
Intergovernmental Revenues
Investment Income
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Operating Expenses
Administrative Office
Management Fees
Personnel Services
Operating Supplies
Professional Fees
Repairs and Maintenance
Telephone and Utilities

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Change in Net Position, Budgetary Basis $

Adjustments to GAAP Basis
Depreciation
Capital Outlay

Change in Net Position, GAAP Basis

Town of Wellington, Colorado
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Drainage Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 693,560 $ 693,560 $ 678,762 $ (14,798)
58,400 58,400 90,128 31,728
112,000 112,000 14,091 (97,909)
300 300 16,819 16,519
864,260 864,260 799,800 (64,460)
6,500 6,500 8,273 (1,773)
242,833 242,833 242,833 -
- - 85,690 (85,690)
- - 14 (14)
63,560 63,560 - 63,560
2,000 2,000 4,233 (2,233)
391,000 391,000 1,466 389,534
387,832 387,832 191,617 196,215
1,093,725 1,093,725 534,126 559,599
(229,465) $ (229,465) 265,674 $ 495,139
(103,322)
63,145
$__ 225497
40

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Form Approved

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually. OMB No. 2125-0032
STATE:
COLORADO
LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
12/22
This Information From The Records Of: Prepared By:
Town of Wellington Janice Foster

I. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

A. Local B. Local C. Receipts from
Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle State Highway-
Taxes Taxes User Taxes

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

ITEM

. Total receipts available

. Minus amount used for collection expenses
. Minus amount used for nonhighway purpose
. Minus amount used for mass transit

. Remainder used for highway purposes

G| |WIN|=

Il. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

ITEM AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
A. Receipts from local sources: A. Local highway expenditures:

Ill. EXPENDITURES FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

1. Local highway-user taxes 1. Capital outlay (from page 2) 41,019.50
a. Motor Fuel (from Item |LA.5.) 2. Maintenance: 421,265.62
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item |.B.5.) 3. Road and street services: _
c. Total (a.+b.) a. Traffic control operations
2. General fund appropriations b. Snow and ice removal
3. Other local imposts (from page 2) $ 1,862,343.04 c. Other
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2)| $ 48,328.55 d. Total (a. through c.) $
5. Transfers from toll facilities 4. General administration & miscellaneous $ 452.,620.18
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes: _ 5. Highway law enforcement and safety
a. Bonds - Original Issues 6. Total (1 through 5) 914,905.30
b. Bonds - Refunding Issues B. Debt service on local obligations: _
c. Notes 1. Bonds:
d. Total (a. +b. +c.) $ - a. Interest
7. Total (1 through 6) $ 1,910,671.59 b. Redemption
8. Private Contributions c. Total (a. +b.)
C. Receipts from State government 2. Notes: _
(from page 2) $ 185,347.36 a. Interest
D. Receipts from Federal Government b. Redemption
(from page 2) $ - c. Total (a. +b.) $ -
E. Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D) $ 2,096,018.95 3. Total (1.c+2.c) $ -
C. Payments to State for highways
D. Payments to toll facilities
E. Total expenditures (A.6 + B.3 + C + D) $ 914,905.30
IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Opening Debt Amount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A. Bonds (Total) $ -
1. Bonds (Refunding Portion) — $ -
B. Notes (Total) $ -
V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE (RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS ONLY)
A. Beginning Balance |B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements |D. Ending Balance E. Reconciliation
$ 3,690,405.72 [ § 2,096,018.95 [ $ 914,905.30 [ § 4,922,739.01 | $ (51,219.64)
Notes and Comments:
FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.06/2000) PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE Excel (Next Page)
page 1
41
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LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

STATE:
COLORADO

12/22

YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):

Il. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

ITEM AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
A.3. Other local imposts: A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments a. Interest on investments $ 37,695.95
b. Other local imposts: b. Traffic Fines & Penalties
1. Sales Taxes 1,617,510.50 |c. Parking Garage Fees
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees $ 133,560.00 |[d. Parking Meter Fees
3. Liens e. Sale of Surplus Property $ 10,632.60
4. Licenses f. Charges for Services
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other i 111,272.54 |g. Other Misc. Receipts
6. Total (1. through 5.) $ 1,862,343.04 |h. Other
c. Total (a. +b.) i 1,862,343.04 |i. Total (a. through h.) $ 48,328.55

(Carry forward to page 1)

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM

C. Receipts from State Government

1. Highway-user taxes (from ltem I.C.5.)

2. State general funds

AMOUNT

$ 148,883.47

ITEM

D. Receipts from Federal Government

1. FHWA (from Item |.D.5.)

2. Other Federal agencies:

AMOUNT

3. Other State funds: a. Forest Service

a. State bond proceeds b. FEMA

b. Project Match c. HUD

c. Motor Vehicle Registrations $ 36,463.89 d. Federal Transit Administration

d. DOLA Grant e. U.S. Corps of Engineers

e. Other f. Other Federal

f. Total (a. through e.) i 36,463.89 g. Total (a. through f.) b -
4. Total (1. +2. + 3.1) $ 185,347.36 3. Total (1. + 2.9) b -

(Carry forward to page 1)

(Carry forward to page 1)

lll. EXPENDITURES FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

A.1. Capital outlay:

a. Right-Of-Way Costs

ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY

SYSTEM
a

OFF NATIONAL

HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
b

TOTAL

b. Engineering Costs

c. Construction:

(1). New Facilities

NP

(2). Capacity Improvements

41,019.50

D
b
(3). System Preservation $ 41,019.50 || $
(4). System Enhancement And Operation b -
(5). Total Construction (1)+(2)+(3)+(4) b -1 41,019.50 || $ 41,019.50
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.4) b -1$ 41,019.50 || $ 41,019.50
(Carry forward to page 1)
Notes and Comments:
FORM FHWA-536
page 2
42
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&' TOWM OF

& WELLINGTON

Board of Trustees Meeting

Date: March 11, 2025
Subject: 2024 Annual Report

e Presentation: Patti Garcia, Town Administrator

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 2024 Annual Report provides a high-level summary of key accomplishments that have shaped our
community over the past year. These achievements would not be possible without the dedication of our staff,
the support of the Board of Trustees, and the engagement of Wellington residents and businesses.

Each year, we continue to move forward, making meaningful progress toward our community’s goals and
priorities. For a town of our size, we have achieved significant milestones, many of which are highlighted in
this report. Most notably, we completed the expansion of our Water Treatment Plant and Water Reclamation
Facility—critical projects that will support Wellington’s long-term growth and sustainability.

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
N/A

CONNECTION WITH ADOPTED MASTER PLANS
N/A

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Review and retain report.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 2024 Annual Report FINAL
2. 2024 Annual Report PowerPoint
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“‘ TOWN OF

Sa@ WELLINGTON
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Q&%

Shirrell Tietz Ed Cannon Brian Mason
Trustee Trustee

Calar Chaussee David Wiegand Rebekka Dailey Lowrey Moyer
Mayor-Pro Tem Mayor

Trustee Trustee Trustee

Calar Chaussee, Mayor
ChausseeC@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2026

Brian Mason, Mayor Pro Tem
MasonB@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2026

Ed Cannon, Trustee
CannonEd@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2028

Rebekka Dailey, Trustee
DaileyRm@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2028

Lowrey Moyer, Trustee
MoyerLo@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2028

Shirrell Tietz, Trustee
TietzS@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2026

David Wiegand, Trustee
WiegandD@WellingtonColorado.gov
Term expires: April 2026

Town Leadership Team

Patti Garcia - Town Administrator

Kelly Houghteling - Deputy Town
Administrator

Bob Gowing - Public Works Director

Meagan Smith - Deputy Public Works Director
Nathan Ewert - Deputy Public Works Director
Cody Bird - Planning Director

Nic Redavid - Finance Director & Town
Treasurer

Stephanie Anderson - Human Resources
Director

Hannah Hill - Town Clerk

Billy Cooksey - Parks & Recreation Manager
Ross LaGenese - Library Director
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' Wellington Announces
Completion of Water

Treatment Expans:gn E;ojects :

Wellington is proud to announce the successful
completion of major expansion projects at the
Town's Water Treatment Plant (WTP) and Water
Reclamation Facility (WRF).

The projects, which were necessary for the
Town to meet capacity needs and regulatory
requirements, got underway in Spring 2022.
The newly expanded facilities double
Wellington’s capacity to provide water and
wastewater utility services to its ever-growing
population while also accommodating
commercial growth.

“This is new territory for Wellington,”
Wellington Mayor Calar Chaussee said.

“These expansion projects will allow us to grow
responsibly as a Town while ensuring we can
provide quality, consistent water and
wastewater utility services to our residents and
businesses.”

The final cost of the WTP expansion came in at
$39,055,590. The final cost of the WRF
expansion was $53,109,734. Both projects
were finished on schedule and under budget
— and both facilities were designed to allow
for further expansion in the future if needed.

Water Treatment Plant
Old Capacity: 2 MGD*
New capacity: 4.2 MGD

Water Reclamation Facility
Old Capacity: 0.9 MGD
New capacity: 1.8 MGD

*MGD= million gallons per day

Whatis the new
treatment
capacity?
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Board Adopts Strategic Plan

After hosting a community Town Hall to
gather feedback on the Town'’s future
direction, the newly elected Board adopted
a Strategic Plan centered on responsible

growth, economic vitality, efficient town
operations, and enhanced community
spaces.

2024 Regular Election Results

Three Board of Trustee seats were up for
election, and a total of 1,989 ballots were
received. The next regular election will take
place in April 2026, with four Board of
Trustee seats on the ballot.

Comcast Franchise Agreement
Brings Better Broadband Access

Wellington residents and businesses will
have access to faster and more stable
broadband internet access — along with a
bevy of new cable television options.

Town Launches Water Source
Development Plan

The Water Source Development Plan will
provide the Town of Wellington with a clear
and actionable guide for ensuring a reliable
and affordable water supply into the
future. By assessing the current water
system, future needs, financial factors, and
stakeholder input, the plan will define
effective solutions for meeting both near
and long-term water demands.

Cleveland Avenue Construction
The Town received $4.4 million in grant
funding to improve Cleveland Avenue
including drainage, sidewalk, and ADA
improvements. Design is underway and
construction will kickoff in fall 2025.

Housing Needs Assessment

The Town is conducting a Housing Needs
Assessment & Strategy, which will identify
and evaluate the current and future housing
demands, trends, and challenges.

New Business License Process

Launched new business license process that
simplified applications, streamlines reviews
and has live updates to business owners.

Community Town Hall Meetings
Increase Engagement

Town Staff hosted Town Halls to get feedback
from the public. Topics included Strategic
Planning, the Cleveland Ave. Construction
Project, and Budget BOO-nanza.

Learn about the Town’s water conservation program.
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Commercial Projects Completed

Projects Sq. Ft Valuation
Commercial New Construction 2 22,454 $ 2,795,515
Commercial Remodel 6 48,592 $ 672,114
New Tenant Finish 3 9,811 $ 845,000
Total 11 80,857 $ 4,312,629

Commercial Projects Permitted

Projects Sq. Ft Valuation
Commercial Remodel 4 16,412 $ 248,000
New Tenant Finish 4 22,303 $ 1,345,500
Total 8 38,715 $ 1,593,500

Total Residential Units
s . Projected
E 150 = | 113121

100 81

107 LOB
82 82
66
% a1 50
24 22
I 0
0 | | | | |
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

2019 2020

Year

T Res. Units Constructed ~ M Projected Res. Units

200
190 196 |

2026 2027 2028 2029

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024]2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Single-Family Detached 24 22 69 140 187 220 273 186 101 115 205 102 82 66 21
Attached and Multi-Family 0 0 12 4 0 12 70 15 5 60 67 11 0 0 20
Res. Units Constructed 24 22 81 144 187 232 343 201 156 175 272 113 82 66 41 0
Projected Res. Units 121 107 82 50| 108 190 196 200 200

* Attached and Multi-family unit counts manually adjusted to reflect changes in the way permits were entered over time

** Years 2021, 2022 and 2023 - Permits limited due to capacity constraints during construction of water and wastewater treatement plant expansions
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Wellington Earns National
Budget Award

For the first time in its history, the Town
earned the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award.

Installation of Parks Signage

The new signs installed are making it easier
for both residents and visitors to navigate and
enjoy our public spaces.

Audits Underway

The Town has completed the 2021 and 2022
audits. The 2023 audit is scheduled for
presentation to the Board in early 2025.

New Fishing Dock Installed

Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) awarded
Wellington more than $40,000 for the
purchase and installation of a fishing dock for
the West Pond at Wellville Park.

Dedication of Harvest Park

The Town successfully added Harvest Park, in
the Harvest Village neighborhood, after
dedication and acceptance.

Events Draw Crowds,
Fostering Small Town Feel

Annually, the Town host numerous events
that draw the community together such as
4th of July, Parade of Lights, Veterans Day,
Clean-up Day, Town-wide Garage Sale and
more!

Park ‘N Play Days

Parks & Rec hosted four Park ‘N Play events
at local parks through town, a free event
for the whole family!

Library’s Growing Impact

In 2024, the Wellington Public Library
gained 405 new patrons, while circulating
35,463 resources — a testament to its
growing community impact.

Increase Community Outreach

The Town has made a significant effort to
increase outreach and engagement with
our residents by creating press releases
and coordinating with local media for
additional coverage.

WellingtonColorado.Gov
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Fast Facts Wellington

VISION

Welcome to Wellington, where deep-rooted values and a rich
heritage unite to forge paths that honor our past, ignite a
legacy of unity, and create a welcoming community for all.

MISSION

Our mission is to provide outstanding municipal services for
our community of today and tomorrow.

v & o

il
12174 33 $101,259

Population Median Age Median Incorporated
Household Income 1905

63.75
Town Employees
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Wellington Earns National
Budget Award

For the first time in its history, the Town
earned the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award.

Installation of Parks Signage

The new signs installed are making it easier
for both residents and visitors to navigate and
enjoy our public spaces.

Audits Underway

The Town has completed the 2021 and 2022
audits. The 2023 audit is scheduled for
presentation to the Board in early 2025,

New Fishing Dock Installed

Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) awarded
Wellington more than $40,000 for the
purchase and installation of a fishing dock for
the West Pond at Wellville Park.

Dedication of Harvest Park

The Town successfully added Harvest Park, in
the Harvest Village neighborhood, after
dedication and acceptance.

Events Draw Crowds,
Fostering Small Town Feel

Annually, the Town host numerous events
that draw the community together such as
4Ath of July, Parade of Lights, Veterans Day.
Clean-up Day. Town-wide Garage Sale and
more!

Park ‘N Play Days

Parks & Rec hosted four Park ‘N Play events
at local parks through town, a free event
for the whole family!

Library’s Growing Impact
In 2024, the Wellington Public Library
gained 405 new patrons, while circulating

35,463 resources — a testament to Its
growing community impact.

Increase Community Outreach

The Town has made a significant effort to
increase outreach and engagement with
our residents by creating press releases
and coordinating with local media for
additional coverage.

Board Adopts Strategic Plan

After hosting a community Town Hall to
gather feedback on the Town's future
direction, the newly elected Board adopted
a Strategic Plan centered on responsible
growth, economic vitality, efficient town
operations, and enhanced community
spaces.

2024 Regular Election Results

Three Board of Trustee seats were up for
election, and a total of 1,989 ballots were
received. The next regular election will take
place in April 2026, with four Board of
Trustee seats on the ballot.

Comcast Franchise Agreement
Brings Better Broadband Access

Wellington residents and businesses will
have access to faster and more stable
broadband internet access — along with a

bevy of new cable television options.

Town Launches Water Source
Development Plan

The Water Source Development Plan will
provide the Town of Wellington with a clear
and actionable guide for ensuring a reliable
and affordable water supply into the
future. By assessing the current water
system, future needs, financial factors, and
stakeholder input, the plan will define
effective solutions for meeting both near
and long-term water demands.

Cleveland Avenue Construction
The Town received $4.4 million in grant
funding to improve Cleveland Avenue
including drainage, sidewalk, and ADA
improvements. Design is underway and
construction will kickoff in fall 2025.

Housing Needs Assessment

The Town is conducting a Housing Meeds
Assessment & Strategy, which will identify
and evaluate the current and future housing
demands, trends, and challenges.

New Business License Process

Launched new business license process that
simplified applications, streamlines reviews
and has live updates to business owners.

Community Town Hall Meetings
Increase Engagement

Town Staff hosted Town Halls to get feedback
from the public. Topics included Strategic
Planning, the Cleveland Ave. Construction
Project, and Budget BOO-nanza.

Leagrn about the Town's water consenysation grogram.
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Board of Trustees Meeting

Date: March 11, 2025
Subject: Green Events Inc. Spring Equinox Special Event Permit

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Green Events Inc. has submitted to the Local Liquor Licensing Authority an application for a Special event
Permit on March 23, 2025 from 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM. Staff received the application on February 10, 2025.
Notice has been posted at the location and the proof of posting affidavit has been included in the packet.

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

The application includes a diagram of the requested beer garden, located at 3999 GW Bush Ave Lot A. Staff
has reviewed the application with stakeholders and there were no items of concern from staff or stakeholders.

CONNECTION WITH ADOPTED MASTER PLANS
N/A

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff would reccommend to the Authority for approval of the Special Event Permit.

ATTACHMENTS

2025 Spring Equinox Application Redacted
2025 Premise Diagram

Certificate of Good Standing

Letter of Permission

Notice of posting 2-25-2025

Nk W=
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DR 8439 (08/12/24)

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enforcement Division

PO BOX 17087

Denver CO 80217-0087

(303) 205-2300 Application fora
Special Events Permit

Departmental Use Only

Liguor Permit Number (Do Not Fill Out)

In order to qualify for a Special Events Permit, You Must Be a Qualifying Organization Per 44-5-102
C.R.S. and One of the Following (See back for details.)

O Social @ Athletic (O Philanthropic Institution
(O Fraternal (O Chartered Branch, Lodge or Chapter () Political Candidate
(O Patriotic (O National Organization or Society (O Municipality Owned Arts Facilities

O Political (O Religious Institution (O Chamber of Commerce

LIAB Type of Special Event Applicant is Applying for:

2110 EA Malt, Vinous And Spirituous Liquor $25.00 Per Day
2170 [] Fermented Malt Beverage $10.00 Per Day
Name of Applicant Organization or Political Candidate State Sales Tax Number (Required)

Green Events Inc.
Mailing Address of Organization or Political Candidate

PO Box 1523
City State ZIP Code
Fort Collins CO | |80524

Address of Place to Have Special Event

Lot A - 3999 GW Bush Ave

City State ZIP Code
Wellington CO | |80549
Authorized Representative of Qualifying Organization or Political Candidate

Lisa Sinclair

Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY) Phone Number

Authorized Representative’s Mailing Address (if different than address provided in Question 2.)

City State ZIP Code

Page 10f 5
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Event Manager

Lisa Sinclair
Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY) Phone Number

—

Event Manager Home Address

State ZIP Code

|

Email Address of Event Manager

|

—

. Is the place to have the Special Event located on State-owned property?

O Yes @ No

Has Applicant Organization or Political Candidate been issued a Special Event Permit this
Calendar Year?

N

O No @ Yes, How many days? 1

ot

Is the premises for which your event is to be held currently licensed under the Colorado Liquor or
Beer codes?

@ No () Yes, License Number

>

Does the Applicant Have Possession or Written Permission for the Use of The Premises to
be Licensed?

@® Yes O No

For Chambers of Commerce - Each member who holds a retail establishment permit attests they
are not exercising the privileges of the retail establishment permit for the duration of the SEP days.

O Yes O No

For Chambers of Commerce - Please list all members participating in the SEP.

o

®

DR 8439 (08/12/24) Page20of 5
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List Below the Exact Date(s) for Which Application is Being Made for Permit

Date Date

3/23/25

From: To: From: To:
9:00 am 2:00 pm

Date Date

From: To: From: To:
Date Date

From: To: From: To:
Date Date

From: To: From: To:
Date Date

From: To: From: To:
Date Date

From: To: From: To:
Date Date

From: To: From: To:
Date Date

From: To: From: To:
DR 8439 (08/12/24) Page 3 of 5
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Oath of Applicant

| declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that | have read the foregoing application
and all attachments thereto, and that all information therein is true, correct, and complete to the
best of my knowledge.

Title

Secretary

Signature Date (MM/DD/YY)
Lvaa Smclac 2/10/25

Report and Approval of Local Licensing Authority (City or County)

The foregoing application has been examined and the premises, business conducted and character
of the applicant is satisfactory, and we do report that such permit, if granted, will comply with the
provisions of Title 44, Article 5, C.R.S., as amended.

Therefore, this Application is Approved.

Local Licensing Authority (City or County)

O city O County
Telephone Number of City/County Clerk
Title
Signature Date (MM/DD/YY)

Do Not Write in this Space - For Department of Revenue Use Only

Liability Information

License Account Number Liability Date
State Total

-750 (999) $ .00
DR 8439 (08/12/24) Page 4 of 5
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Spring Equinox Site Map
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OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO

CERTIFICATE OF FACT OF GOOD STANDING

I, Jena Griswold, as the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado, hereby certify that, according to the
records of this office,

Green Events Inc

isa
Nonprofit Corporation

formed or registered on 01/28/2012 under the law of Colorado, has complied with all applicable
requirements of this office, and is in good standing with this office. This entity has been assigned entity
identification number 2012106461,

This certificate reflects facts established or disclosed by documents delivered to this office on paper through
02/07/2025 that have been posted, and by documents delivered to this office electronically through
02/10/2025@ 11:42:43.

I have affixed hereto the Great Seal of the State of Colorado and duly generated, executed, and issued this

official certificate at Denver, Colorado on 02/10/2025 @ 11:42:43 in accordance with applicable law.
This certificate is assigned Confirmation Number 16984037

Joros et

Secretary of State of the State of Colorado

ishlaisiaiaisiaiaisiaiaiiaiaiaiaisiaiaisiaisisiaisiaialaiaialsiaiaisiaiaiaialaiaiated =10 [0 lo) S O1-T01) i [o7: | (- eiaiskaiaisiaiaisaiaisiaiaisiaiaiaiaisiaisiaiaisiaiaisiaisiaisaiaisialaiaiaials
Notice: A certificate issued electronically from the Colorado Secretary of State’s website is fully and immediately valid and effective.
However, as an option, the issuance and validity of a certificate obtained electronically may be established by visiting the Validate a
Certificate page of the Secretary of State’s website, https:/lwww.coloradosos.govibiz/CertificateSearchCriteria.do entering the
certificate’s confirmation number displayed on the certificate, and following the instructions displayed. Confirming the issuance of a certificate
is merely optional and is not necessary to the valid and effective issuance of a certificate. For more information, visit our website,
https:/Iwww.coloradosos.gov click “Businesses, trademarks, trade names” and select “Frequently Asked Questions.”
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Private Property Owner/Authorized Property Manager Letterhead

Larimer County

Special Event Permitting Office
200 W Oak Street

Fort Collins, CO 80524

RE: Authorization to Use Private Property for Special Event

To: Larimer County Special Event Permitting Office:

| am the owner of the property located at Lot A 3999 GW Bush, Wellington CO 80549
and authorize the property to be used by Green Events as part of the venue for the
Spring Equinox event scheduled to take place on March 23, 2025

| also approve of the serving beer/alcohol at the event on March 23, 2025 from 9:00 am
to 2:00 pm.

Furthermore, | understand and agree that the Host Organization is the legally and
financially liable entity responsible for the special event.

Sincerely, -
[ é\é/’/ < = 1/22/2025__
Property Owner/Manager Signature Date

__Richard Efird
Print Property Owner/Manager

__910-528-1915
Property Owner/Manager Telephone
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@ WELLINGTON

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

Date of posting:  2-25 -25

I hereby certify that, in accordance with the Colorado Liquor Code and related rules and regulations, the

applicant, (/\1‘YLCV\ G\/l/\/\'kg posted a Notice of Public Hearing poster on the

premises at_3949 QL\_’ l?z SIS‘Q | d; A on the above date, and continuously thereafter for at least 10

days before the hearing, notifying the public that a hearing will be held _March 11, 2025 on an

application for a Special Event Liquor License to dispense malt, vinous and spirituous beverages by the

drink for consumption on the premises on March 23, 2025 from 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM.

A photograph of the Notice as posted on the premises is attached.

L\gcf\g\}\dm'v :

Printed Name and Title of Person Posting

G L

Signature of-pérson posting

STATE OF COLORADO )
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) SS

TOWN OF WEEERNGTON )
fort Collirs

Subscribed and sworn before me by Ll A0 S N (Ll ALy~ this M
day of XYlelb ,2059.

SEAL \otary Signature

REBEKAH LYNN SIEGFRIED
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY ID 20224006942
LMY COMMISSION EXPIRES 02/17/2026
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Board of Trustees Meeting

Date: March 11, 2025
Subject: February 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
February 25, 2025 Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
N/A

CONNECTION WITH ADOPTED MASTER PLANS
N/A

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approve on the consent agenda.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2-25-2025 Minutes
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@@ WELLINGTON
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

February 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes
6:30 PM

Leeper Center, 3800 Wilson Avenue, Wellington, CO

A. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Chaussee called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

1.  Pledge of Allegiance
Mayor Chaussee asked for all to rise for the pledge of allegiance.

2. Roll Call
The Clerk noted quorum with following roll call:
Cannon — Present
Dailey — Present
Moyer — Absent
Tietz — Present virtually
Wiegand — Present
Mason — Present
Chaussee — Present

3. Amendments to Agenda
Mayor Chaussee asked if there were any amendments to the agenda, and there were none.

4.  Conflict of Interest
Mayor Chaussee asked if there were any conflicts of interest on agenda items; there were none.

B. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

1.  Public Comment

Mark Gabbert, Chair of Grace Village Board of Directors, spoke to a grant the Board
provided to the Community Services Center Project in order to fund an ADA elevator. It was
noted the finalization of the building purchase was for a single story building. Mr. Gabbert
asked for the Board’s permission to utilize the funding for an ADA compliant restroom
instead of an elevator.

C. LIQUOR LICENSE AUTHORITY BOARD

1. Special Event Permit Application for Wellington Colorado Main Street Program

Mayor Chaussee recessed the Regular Meeting and called the Liquor License Authority Board to
order at 6:34 p.m. and the Clerk noted a quorum with the following roll call:

Cannon — Present

Dailey — Present

Moyer — Absent

Tietz — Present virtually

Wiegand — Present

Mason — Present

Chaussee — Present

8225 31 Street | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov




Hannah Hill, Town Clerk, noted special event permit application for March 15, 2025. The location
and requirements met were noted, along with staff questions noting the tent and boundary
requirements. Staff recommended approval of the permit, with a serving time of 9 AM opposed to 7
AM.

The applicant addressed the Authority noting that there will be two pot-a-lets inside the boundary,
accessible for all users, and that a worker would be stationed at the entry and exits, as well as
addressed the use of the word tent as opposed to canopies.

The applicant noted that they looked forward to continuing the relationship with the property
owner.

There was no public comment for this item.

Trustee Cannon moved to approve the Special Event Permit for Wellington Colorado Main Street
Program, with a start time of 9 AM.

Trustee Wiegand seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Chaussee adjourned the Liquor License Authority Board and reconvened the Regular
Meeting at 6:40 p.m.

D. CONSENT AGENDA
1. February 11, 2025 Board of Trustee's Meeting Minutes

2. A Resolution Adjusting Appropriations of the Town Of Wellington, Colorado for the Fiscal Year
Beginning January 1, 2025, and Ending On December 31, 2025

Mayor Pro Tem Mason moved to approve the consent agenda.

Trustee Tietz seconded and the motion passed unanimously.
E. REPORTS

1.  Town Attorney
There was no Town Attorney report.

2. Town Administrator
It was noted the 2022 Audit was submitted to the Board and a presentation will be coming to the
Board at an upcoming meeting. It was also noted that the Town received another award for the
municipal budget.

3. Staff Communications
Items were included in the packet.

a.  Treasurer's Report (December 2024)

b.  Report of Bills (December 2024)

c.  Larimer County Sheriff's Office Report (January 2025)
d.  Utilities Report (January 2025)

8225 31 Street | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov




4.  Board Reports

Trustee Dailey noted the Main Streets Program is busy with all upcoming events and thanked the
Board for their work on all upcoming events and programs.

Trustee Cannon noted that repurposing the funding for the building is appropriate.

Mayor Pro Tem Mason agreed for the use of funding and expressed congratulations to the Finance
Department for their budget accolades.

Mayor Chaussee expressed the same.
F. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations,
developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(e),
C.R.S., and for the purpose of receiving legal advice pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S., —
regarding negotiations related to NPIC and water resources. As required by C.R.S. §24-6-
402(2)(d.5)(ID)(A) and (II) (E) the Executive Session proceedings will be electronically recorded
and the record will be preserved for 90 days through May 26, 2025.

Trustee Cannon moved to recess into executive session
Trustee Tietz seconded and the motion passed.
Mayor Chaussee recessed into executive session at 6:47 pm.

Mayor Chaussee reconvened the meeting at 8:27 pm.

G. ADJOURN

The meeting was adjourned at 8:27 p.m.

Calar Chaussee, Mayor

Hannah Hill, Town Clerk
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